THE SOUTH PORK BADPIST CHURCH
& History
fugust 1979

Conmentary: Recently while reading for
the first time the minutes of the garly meet-
ings of The South Fork Baptist Church I became
80 Intensely interested snd impressed by the
significance of what I was reading that I felt
impelied tc take notes of things I rersonally
wanted to remember, Then it cceurred to me
that meny others whe would have no oppurtunity
10 read the minutes would be interested and
that we 211 might benefit by having a record
of our "Boots', Thig history is the result of
oy convietion that we gwe 2 great debt of
gratitude to cur forefathers apd others who,
in spite of hardships, difficvities, and
oft-times human failings, adhered %o the
Christian Principles asg taught in the Piple
ag a way of life, and established and kept
‘alive this church as o fulfillment of their

i We have z priceless heritage passed
on to uvs by God-fearing men ang Womnen who
sought  +to live and rvear their children in
the fear and admonition ¢f the Tord sc I anm
writing this LEST Wk FGRGET.
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The South Fork Baptist Church ig an
organization belonging to the Harrigville
Association. TIits place of worship is mear the
Ritchie County i hwest District of
Doddridge County, Wesgt Virginia, and is situated
on the ridge road connecting the communities
of Oxford,on the § of Hughes River 5
end Summers, i rk of Hughes River,




Served th

s : °L the churehts OTganizatipy
and,since tha+ clerk wag g direct descendent of:
S0Mme, ang Personally atguainteg with others, - -
who Vere charter embers, i+ ig reasonable
o assume that the date ig 2uthentje, The
minuteg of the neeting held, more than two
Jears after that date, on February 27,1844 3g .
the first wWritten Tecord we have of ite
activitiese Minuteg have been faithfully kept
of the transactions at the businesg meetings
for mogt Cf the ears since that time,

The first Tifteen fiames on the church roll .

descendents of that family numberegd anong the
active members, Sophis imelia Zinp marrieqd
Thomas 7, Davis ang lived gt Harrisville, i
She beghme the mother of' Thomag ., Davig,dr,,
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grandmother of Thomasg Je Davis,Sr., and

great-grandmother of Thomas J, Davis, Jr. R

A1) three wate Harrisvilile lawyers and Thomasg |

Jo Davis, Jr., is gtil] practicing there, She

was also the grandmother of Winifregd Davis,

wife of Judge Homer B, Wbods,-a?d has had nine
or

descendents who have practited are still
bPracticing) law or who married lawyers.

Another son of John and Ruth Gandy Zinn
who was a pioneer menber of South Fork wae
Granville I, Zinn, He and his wife, Rosetta
Lowther Zinn,were Teceived by beptism in 1845
and were still active members wntal his deatn
in 1891 and hers in 1912,

The first minutes vere written by Samuel

G. Rogers who married Narcissusg Zinn, another
daughter of John Zinn. They lived near Oxford
and had two sons, After her death he remarried
and moved to Preston County being granted a
letter of dismission in 1856,
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in them for legs. Although meetings were held
there regularly the building was not finisheqd
for several years ag the following axcerpts .
from the minutes indicate: 4

Jan. 20,1849 - "Resolved that Bro. G.W, |
Zinn, Bro, S.G.Rogers, Bro, T.S.Gray be appoint-
ed to attend +o getting the material to finish
the meeting houge, " |

Resolved that Bro. ¢, Carroll get all the
- help he can to do the work on the meeting house, "

Jan.28,1854 - gy motion, appointed Bro, !

G.W.Z2inn to collect money for the purpose of
finishing the meeting house ang fencing in the
cemetery and to Superintend the wori, "

Jan. 26,1856 - "Paid Bro, T.8.Gray for
filling the windows with glass, $1,00, %

B
o
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March 1858 - "4 deed of Conveyence for
meeting house lot and graveyard was read and,
on motion, received.”

HOn Motion, appoint by ballot Deacon T.5.
Gray, G.G Griffin, and Jacob Mason as Ltrustees
of said property.”

The Tirat minister was Hev. James 5 . Briffin
who lived at Lumberport in Barrison County and
was one of the piomeer ministers of the Baptiat
ehurch in  what is now West Virginia. His
field of work was in Harrison, Doddridge,
Ritchie and surrounding counties extending
ag far as the Fanawha ¥alley. He served the
South Fork Church off and om from ite Deglnning
through October 1857 with a record of ome
sermon ypreached in November 1866 .

In the spring of 1852 Rev. Griffin's son,
George G. Griffin amd his wife, Juan Fernandez
Zinn {another daughter of Jorm and Ruth Gandy
Zinn) with their twe daughters, Virginia and
Caroline, moved from Harrison County and located
in Doddridge County near the Ritechie County
line on ithe head of Bear Rum. They were
received into the church by letter in June
4852, They bought and cleared 2 farm {(1ater
owned by their grandson, Homer Wilson) and
here they had eight more chilren. In 1878
they moved to Holbrook where they lived the
rest of their lives. BEventually all ten of
their children became members of the church
ana some of their descendents are still
sctive members.

Tn each new book of minutes the first
item to appear was & copy of the Ehurch
@ovenant and Articles of Faith setting forth
the principles of Christisn belief and with
the stipulation that they be read to the
churck on request. Added to that was "Rules
of Decorun® a list of rules which, in one case
in 1859, was written by +he pastor and deacons,
then discussed (at great length) in business
meetingsgthen finally sdopted by the churche.
The first of tThese rules were ingtuctions
for the order of conducting business meetings.
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Some of the other pules of Decorum which seemed
+to be rather rigldly enforced were 88 follows:

¥No member shall cast 8ny reflections oT
meke remarks on +he sglips, failures, 0T imper=
feptions of auy other pegber on pain 6f the
sonsure of the church.”

#Tp-ag-much &g order and decency DeCOHed
the House of God no whigpering or laughing in
the time of a speech, BO 1eitering or lying
down in time of @ session will be sxpected.”

tany member Falling tg sttend three church
peetings in succession will be reguived to give
eatisfaction tTo the shureh for thelr shsence.”

tyhereas tThere is much ovil attending
the use of intoxicating 1iguors, Resolved
therefore that we molke the manufacturing,
selling end drinking of sréent spirits as &
beverage & test of fellowship."

Tn 1880 the rule concerning missing
three meetings in succession wag sbruck from
the books.

We are told thal.in the earky church.
discipline was strict snd the church was con-
cerned about the 1life and condust of its mem-
bers. Thet Statement 1s werne out by & look
at how scme of these raleg were enforced. A
true story (handed down DY word of mouth)
from the aays when it was very improper To
ilaugh in church and when parents believed that
to spare the rod wes to spoil the child,
concerned The two 80D, eight and nine years
of age, of one of the descons of The churche
Dre nipht while an elderly manm wag praying
in & glew drewling tonme of voice, outeide an
gpii-wimdﬁwgaeaw *hawled¥. The old man
ifted his head, looked arouwnd az A Wihn b
thate mockin' met" Jhe liﬁtﬁg ég§£¥§§i%ﬁ£§§QB
and were spared a fyhipping® by their father
for laughing in church only because their
mother intervened,

Besides parental discipline, the church
members had ways of disciplining each other.
Tf there were “differences"” bhetween msmbers,
if someone was reported as having committed
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some act unbecoming @& church member, or had
missed three meetings in successiong¢a committee
was appointed to investifate. . Often the
specifie charge was not recorded. If the minutes
read, "The committes reported and was discharped"
snd the mewxt motion resd theit the one who had
heen visited by the committes was to be "Exclud-
éd"sone could only assume that the report had
been unfavorable. If the committee recommended
that eifbE¥one, or both, of those having dif-
ficulties meke acknowledgement before the
church and they failed %o do se, They were
usualiy excluded. If the committes of church
members failed to resolve the difllculty,
neighboring churches or the Association were
asked to send 2 committee to investigate. &
fow were excluded for intoxicatlioen, or a2s one
clerk put it YFor getting drunk and using bad
lenguage", a few for adultery, several for
absenting themselves from the church" (being
shsent more than three meetings), and some for
Yoontempt of the church® (failure to acluowliedge
their wrongs). The frequency with which such
incidents were recordsd in the earliy minutes
shows & conclentious effort on the part of the
members to carry out this sectlon of +he church
covenant: "Walking together in brotherly love,
we will exercise & Christian care and watch-
fulness over each other and faithiully wern.
rebukre, and admonish one anotheTiscee e LTRETE
ia evidence thaet occasionally in their zaal
for Ywarning, rebuking, and admonishing® they
forgot about ®welking together in brotherly
Tove".The faet that so meny did "acknowledge
their wrongs®,as the church required them to
dogshowed not only & kind of courage and
sericusness of purpose in living a Christian
1ife but alamo & determinstion to remaln church
members and carry om the work of the churche.
The Civil War years was & time of great
turneil,with many families and churches divided
by their opposing views. This proved to be a
stormy period for The South Fork Baptist |
ghurch. Apparently factions had developed in
the church,so in the fall of 4861 the church
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aiemissed thelil pagtor and &iﬁb&nﬁeﬁfnaﬁ
meeting sgain im the church building mm@ll ‘ ]
£ 1864, During that periepd SOmE of

the summer O

the members hegan Lo mect end hold services
in the RLI4EE achocl House, B log building
BT ely Three o2 leg ooubhadsy of the
oriE vureh btulldinge After passing the
ehu g%h@ romd ascenced the hill av
th ¢ Bugar Bun and, foT shout & mile

2 followed the ridge That separates

ol
o

Tear Run and LOWET Pur. e RIGEe Sehook
Bouse stood in the fie1d (now owned v Enld
minm) & few hundred fest from where The ridge
»ozd started Lo gescend the w41 towsrd Sume
mers Tollowing Zinn Run B0 Migdle Fork of
Bughes Rivel. it & service held im the Ridge
cohool House in June 1864 several Youbg paople

sonfesged thelr seith in Christ shd expressed

g dGesire To unite with the church, Since
they had nov Been meeting &8s &b orpanized
churchethe Zroup decided to make an affort %o
get the aputh Fork Church Logether agall. A
meeting was held at the church puilding on
July 2%, 1864, A discussion wWas held as Lo
whether they ghould congider +hemgelves The
South Fork Baptist Chureh. The clerk wrote,
e decided we are the churck®. For about &
vear they carried on the work of the churel,

~zlling & pastor, receiving new members, etl.

Byt there wele protests because in September
1865 the group oalling tnemselves the church
acked three neighboring shurches to send

men for & committes "tO adjust the gifferencesd
hetween us and those that heve dissented from
us". The commitiee decided that the group

that had been meebling Was the true South Fork
did not settlie the

church., Rowever ,that

matter ag 18 indicated by the minutes of
November 1866: there {g record of ancther
committee of Three deacons from other church&s
being calied to decide tyhe is the South Fork
Church proper'. This +time both sides agreed
to abide by the decision of the commitiee.
Afiter & very thorough ipvestigation the

5
el
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committee reported that both gides had been

too hasty, that there had been hard ssyings

op both sides, effected & recon iliation
between the two factlons, end declared that the
majority,or the ones who had been meeting,

were the churche

From 1864 for over four years the church
held most of 1tse meetings in the original
evurch building during +he gumer months and
in the Ridge Schocol House during three or four
of the winter monthse  After the summel.
of 1868 the church did not returm to the
church builldling but continued to meet in
the Ridge School House for a period of
about four years. &t the meeting on Decem-
ver 7, 1872 the church voted "To move her
place of worship to The sehpol houase on bLower

, Run below B.L.Wilsom's." {(That log school
nouse still stsmds across the road and nearl
the W.Frank Osborne regidence.} The church
met in the lLower Run gchool house fex several
months until a new church building was
completed in 1873. _ .

Tn March 1870 the church voted "To appoint’
a committee to take into consideration the
propriety of puilding & church house and pick
on 2 location'®, The committee consisted of
G.MZinn, S.V.Brown, M,B.Zinn, Joshua Wilson,
and 0.G.Griffin (who was later replaced
by Joseph A, Summers). The new church house
was & frame building 70 by 40 feet and was
built om & half acre lotb that was deeded TO
the church vy S5.¥. and Serah B, Brown in 1871
That lot is now & part of %he South Fork -
Cemetery. The comnittes made arrangements
+g have the Jumber aswed. ot the old miil at
Holbrook and secured indrew Yaler and the
vatler Brothers to build <t with the help of
ihe members and friends of the church. The
first meeting held in the new huilding was
on September 28,1875,

The South Fork Cemetery began its
existance in 188%. The minutes for May 1,
1889 contains this sentence, "(n motion the
qhuvch_returnjtheir thanks to Sister Brown
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Tor the offer made to the church for a half
acre of land adjoining tue chureh propaerty

lor burizl purposes®. The deed wasz net secured
until two years later but %he lang came inte
immediate use for its intended burpese. Homer
Wilson ofter told what, et tue ags of 16, ke
helped dig the firet grave in the cemet&ry,
That of his cousin, Allisen VanHorn, and loater
planted 2%t the nesd of tae grave & cedar sivub
that had been supplied by als mother, "Jennie®
Wilson, who saisd that would probably be the
only menument £11isen would ever have, Tne
slender ghrub grew teo be ahout eight feet tall
and remained there sevenly years, In 1959 it
wes cul down amd replaced by reletives with a
small bronze plate to mark e grave, There
are cther tombstones in tpe cemetery on which
the date of death ia indicated as pricr to
188% but those bodies were moved from other
burial places.

En iron fence wag built around the
cemetery in 1904 at a cost of $250.00. Since
then that fence has been repaired and finslly
all replaced but stiil remaining frow the
original fence -is +the arch over the entrance
bearing the name, Scuth Fork Cemetery. Additioge
21 land has been added to the original hals
gere. Vhen the present place of worship was
built in 1909,the old chureh building was torn
down and the lot on which it had steod was
taken into the cemetery. In 1929 g trisngular
Plot of land on +he Southeastern side of the
cemslery was acquired from Homer Wilson, who
Then owned the "Brownt farm and in 1960 an
additional plot at the back op Northeastern
side was obtained from Homer Wilson's egztate,

The present chureh tuilding was srected
in 1909 and Gedicated June 26,1910, T4 was
built across the road frem the ola structure
en:one end of tha grove which had bheepn purchassd
for $25,00 from R.A.MeClain and wife ang Jeh,
Sunmmers and wife in 1871, %he building commit-
tee consisted of J. K. Wilson, JM.0sborn, Lee
Campbell, Ezra Bell, and William Campbell,

The committee named M. Homer Wilsom as foreman
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and he planned and built the sanciuvary with
tiie help of many wmenbers of the church. The
total cost of thne structure was $2275,00,s1l
of which had been collected before the dedica-
tion-. excert §516.77 which was raised at that
service., The dedicatery sermon was presented
by Rev. Marshall 4. Supmers, the dedicatery
prayer by C.Ernest Wilson, who also gave fne
sermon in the afternoon service. EHoth of them
were former members of the church and both
nad been ordained to the ministry at South
Fark.

An article clipped from & newspaper of
1910 had this about the dedication: "*The crowd
attending the dedication was estimated at freom
1500 to 2000 people.....The church iz & beaubi-
fol one .....with twelve elegant memorisl
windows with cethedral giass, all placed by
friends in memory of deparied ones, most of
whom were for years members of the 01d South
Fork Churchesssees.Une of the best belle in the
country is on the church and cenm be heard for
miles around¥. '

It is of intersst to note that the name
of one of the chaeriter menmbers of the church,
Godfrey Carroll, appears on one of the
memorial windows. dHis wife, Fary, became &
member in 1845, four years afler the organi-
zation of the church, Cther pioneer members
whnose names are on one of the memorizl windows
are Granville Zinn and his wife (Hosetta}. They
were alse received into tue church in 1845,

JMany customs have been followed consistent-
1y throughout the 1ife of the church. From
the first,the church, regularly each year,
has sent delegates to the Association. In
early days the moderator appointed three dele~
gates, appointed somecne to write a letter
to the Association (sometimes the clerk,
sometimes someone else), appointed a committee
to examine the letter,nad the letter read to
and adopted by the congregation; then, after
the Assoclation, heard a report from the
delegates who attended., The church still
participates in Associational work.
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any mention made of the name of the

or of where it was to meet. One
pre-Civil War days was made to the
whether or not South
+ Agsociation wntil

Seldom Was
Association
reference in
Northwestern Association.
Tork remained & member of tha
joiming The Harrisville arsgociation 1S unknoWi.
Tn August 1889 a notion read, "That the clerk
insert in the vetter to The Assgciation & request
for a letter %o join the nev sssociation®. Since
rpe first meeting of The Harrisville hssociation
was held in 18689 the South Pork delegates were
T the South

probably present atb that meeting.
+heo0 we read, #0n motion,

Pork mirmbtes for bugusy

olecting delegates LY paliok to The parrisville
szsociation that meets with Tne Union Baptist
Church at Calre, tugust 20, 1890." G.G.Griffin

was treasurer of The Harrisville Aasociation

ror & period of 15 yearsS.

Where tne Associations had pet in previous
years is unknown but the first record we have
of its having been nheld at South Fork is in
1893, The minutes ror June 2,1892 inciude,
won motiom to ask +he Association o meet wit

In the minutes for July &,1893

us next year®.

we read, "On motion to appoint & committee of
three for arrangensnts during the Association”.
One item, however, WaE not 1eft for the commit=
+oe to arrangé as can he seen by tThis gquote

from the minutes for August 12,1895, %0n motion
that the church grants B.J.Hudkins privilege of
furnishing iemonade and waber on the grounds

during the Lesociation.” The committee for
arrangements for +he Associatlon was J.K.Wilson,

H.0,2inn, and S.G.Zinn.
Another event faithfully arranged each yeal
nas been the holding of & revival. In early
years a revival was often calleg"s meeting of
gays®, & “pratracted meeting®, or as one clerk
a0 aptly put 1%, n We protracted our meeting
fpam day To dayle Revivals were usually held
during the winter months until the automobile
pegan to replace horses ag a means of transpor-
tation when it became the usval thing to have
pevivals while Tne weather was "good' before

the roads got "bad".
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Until the early 1900's it was the usual
practice to baptise those who presented them-
selves as candidates for baptism without any
delay even though it meant breaking the ice
on the water Iin the creek to be able to"hold
the baptising". Often, the minutes reveal,
if someone presented themselves -for baptism
in a service the congregation "repaired to the
waters" immediately after that serviwe where
the ordinance of baptism was administered. For
nost of the present century it has been the
custom to wait for warm weatiier before holding
baptismal services. As a result a "haptising"
was often heldonly once or twice a year. At
least during tue early part of the present
century the announcement that a baptismal
service was to be held would often result in its
being attended by a sizable crowd. Even though
the customs pertaining to "baptisings" have
changed somewhat the ordinance of baptism by
immersion still remains one of the cherished
Baptist beliefs.

South Fork Baptist Church Baptiemal Service
___June 30,1918 ~ Rev, 0fa Bennett,Pastor
(Middle Fork - Near Jacob Spiker residence)




s I

the ma

on the ne
arter of thig
Jority of
eting at 2;0p P.M. or
before the fourth
0l at 9:3
Summe*

n why
to it

xt




CPage 14

had "learned by heart®, Then later they had
Testament classes, No,{, Ro.2,etc. In this
same book we read, "Sabbath School organized
on May 3, 1963 at the schocl house on the
Tidge by electing Joseph A. Summers, Supt.

J.H .Plerce, Assistant, and Jacob A, Mason,
Librarian”. Then follows a list of class mem-
ers and a list of those who had paid for the
library.

By the early 1900%'g +the program of most
sessions of the Sunday School followed this
routine: Pirst was opening sxercises led by
the superintendenmt. Then the classes assembled
in different corners of the building to study
the lesson. There were four classes, the pri-
mary or "card" class (nemed for the picture
cards given sach Sunday to each member of ihe
class),the Junior Class, the Young Peoples Class
and the Adult or "01d Folks® Class. Following
the lesson, the closing exercises included
the report of the secretary who told how many
were present in each class and the amount of
the collection. Then an opportunity was given
for the liftle children to give recitations
or Bible verses that they had memorized. A
beloved teacher of the "ecard® €lass for many
years was Mrs. Bettie Griffin, who died in
1916,

Several young men have been licensed to
the ministry of the Gospel by the South Fork
Church. Perhape the action was net equivalent
to granting a license but in the minutes for
June 1844 we read, "Resolved that we liberate
Bro. G.W.Zinn to exhort when he chooses',

The names of those granted licenses are:
William G. Zinn in 1869, Marshall A, Summers

in 1882, Alexander S. Holden in 1889, C.Ermest
Wilson in 1904, Strother Campbell in 1908, - -
W.Frank Osbeorne in 1929, and ILawrence McCloy
in 1968,

Three of those granted licenses have been
crdained at South Fork. A%l three had been




brought up in this church and were wembsers
at the Time of their ordination.

The first to be ordained was Marshall A.
Summers, gon of Joseph A. and Nemoy Wilson
ummers.  Fe wasg lLicensed on September 0,188
znd ordalned on Februerm 8, 1885, An item of
interest is that Meapshsll Summers wasg received
twto the church and was bapbtissd following
the first worship services that was held in the
"new® church building on September 28,187%,
ther thirty seven years later gave the dedica-
torial sermon for the present church building
in 1910, SHometime zfter his ordination Wr.
Sumners left the state returning in 1903 and
worked for several ysars for the Baptist
General Associztion of W.Va., {now the W.Va.
Baptist Conventicn). In the Pebruary 1979
issue of the West Virginis Baptist in the
article, "Looking a2t Our Roote” (a summary
of Paptist work at the state level) by the
Hev, Bryce W. Griffith, President of the
West Virginie Baptist Historical Saciety,
is the following:

"A call was sxiended to Marshell A.
Summers to becomes General Missionary (as
the position was then called) by the Execus
tive Board in July 190%. Wr. Summers had
been a migsionary for the Minnesota Stote
Convention but was epparently a West Virginia
native., After & visit To inspent the new
Tield, he enteredipon the wark immediztely.
Mr, Summere held this position for eight
and a half years leaving in Januery 1972 +to
accept & similar one in Oklahoms,

in a comparison of 190% and 1811 +the
amfhar of thg above nemed article points
ouu*the great strides made under Mr. Summers!
leadership in meny areas of the Baptist work
curing that period and among obher things
mentions thet “150 new chureches had been
organized and 160 new church buildings ervect-
ed, 79 of them dedicated by Summers", (ne
ol the 79 was The South Fork Baptist Church.

il
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A aceount of the dedication of The South
Fork church that appesred in The Baptist Danner
in 1910 read thus: YRev. M. 4. Summers
preached the dedication sermon. He was born
and raised in this community and the people
feel justly proud of him and his work®.
¢, Ernest Wilson wes the second mine
igster to be ordained at South Fork. He was
licensed on the date March 5,1904, His )
crdination service was conducted Ootober 29,
1904, He was the son of Jzmes K. and Virginia
Griffin Wilson, and for about fifteen yesrs
had heen a teachesr.For one vear afiter deciding
to enter the ministry bhe was pastor of the
Cove Beptist Churchk resigning in the fall of
1905 to atitend Crosier Baptist Theolegical
Seminary at Chester, Pennsylvania. He and
his family spent the summer of 1900 at thelir
farm home {(the home once owned by Samuel V.
Provm b - There his wife {Ella Mafwell Wilson)
died on Auvgust 1., Hr.Wiison returned to schogl
and graduated from Crozier in the spring of
1908, He immediately became pastor of a Bapiist
church at Wellsburg, West Virginiaz ané had an
apparently very successiuvl ministry of thres
years duration. It was while he was pastor of
the church in Wellsburg that he participated
in the dedication program at South Fork. The
article  from The Bapbist Banner reporting the
dedication {(referred %o previa&sly) had this
te say about him: "“In the aftermoon Rev. Emest
Wilson preached & splendid sermon. Rev. Mr.
Wilson is one of our rising young ministers
and has a bright future before him®.

A 1ittle less than two years later he died
at the age of thirty eight, only four years aflte
graduating frem the seminary, cutting short
what pr%ised to be a ministry of great service.
He had remerried and left his wife, the former
Ida Nestor, and an infant son. His son, Ralph
Wilson, is now a member ¢f the Vienna Baptist
Church, Vienna, West Virginia.




The third te be ordained to the ministry
was W. Frank Osborne. He was granted a license
to preach the gospel at the business meeting
weld October 26, 1929, His ordination service
was conducted at South Fork on Augugt 50,19%1.
He began his ministry fifty years age in
August 1929,  His first church was Smi
which he gerved while attending high school
in Harrisville.

In the course of his ministry Rev. Ogborne
has been pestor of 17 churches in six counties,
Ritchie, Doddridge, Herrison, Wirt, Calhoun,
and FPleasante. He served as pastor of lelro
Baptist Church 40 yeers, Straight Creek 23 years,
Prosperity 20 years, Spruce Creek 20 years,
end South Fork 10 years.

He served as moderator of the Harrigville
hssociztion for six vears (194%-1948}.

He has periormed 650 wedding ceremonies.

"he esteem in which he is held by his
many friends and those he has served ag pastor
iz attested by the number of funersl services
he has been asked to conduct. During his 50
years in the ministry he has conducted 1317
funeral Services.

Rev. Osborne and his wife, the former
Sylvia Cutrighté, have lived for meny years
on ILower Run & short distance down stream
from the farm on which he was reared.

The ministers who have served the church
as pastor with the approzimete dates of their
pagtorates follow: James S. Griffin {served
the church off &nd on from the date of its
organization until 1866), A.C.Holden (1844),
Wilford Drummons (1850-51), John Woofter (1855-
573(Fe was the grend, father of Emery J. Wool-
ter for so long pastor cf the Salew Bapiist
Church), Joseph Smith (1857-61), Tillmen
Kemper (1864-66), J. Denmette {1867-68),

George L. Woofter (1869~760) (He was & nephew
of John Woofter, the former pastor, and wasg

a Civil War veteran, enlisting scon after
his ordination. He wag pastor during the
evection of the church building in 1872-73
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and later married Orvilla Suwmers, daughter
of Joseph A, and Eancy'Summerdg whom he had
haptized while he was pastor), G.H .Gaines

=?87( ?8§ John Stump ({1880- 8?;, Le D Fall

%

(1887-88), h.J.Robinson (1828-1902 #ubi
Monroe (1902w07)$ Bern P. Holden aﬁouama i1 {(was
pastér when fthe present building was srected
in 1909), 0fa Benmett (1814207, J.E.Eliiott
(192’?w- . Hdwin dﬁc‘gﬁﬂi‘}@@ (’“/A Y)Y, Nelsao
Bartlett (1928-33), J.4.Young (1973307, .
Jmhn A, Eyre (10%9-40), H.V.leyhew (1940-42),
W.R.Griswold (1943-44), J.W.Burch (1945-46),
W Prank anﬁrne {1948-587, Ray Bartlett (1959-
19643, N H,Bartiett (Interim 4 mo. in 1964},
Ray Bartlett (1964-68), hrthur Spring {1970-

197%}, Arthur Gox (1974-gtill servi ng}
There have also been many rministers
whe supplied the pulpit at various times
but were not degignated as pastor. Seme of
those whose names appeéred in the early
minutes were Joseph Barnett, W.Whitehead,
Thomas Drummons, Aarcon Barnett, E.M.Hzll,
and Allison Parnett. James Woods, grande-
father of Judge Homer B. Woods, often assist-
ed John Woofter in revivals. In more recent
times some of the names of ministers who
conducted one or more serv1ceu were William S.
Uliver, L.S.Vannoy, Clyde Curry, Henry Lang~ "~
fit, BA.VanHeorn. lMany other ministers have
preached at South Fork whose names did not
apprear in tHe nminuiles.
The church clerks have been: Samuel

G. Rogers (4 years}, Jonathan Miney {3 years),
Godfrey Carrell {1 year;, G.G.Griffin (@v@gfs,
Richard hi@kgégJ(ﬁ g@&f@i Semuel V. Bﬁ@ﬂm

7 vears ), M.Homer ¥Wilson (20 years), | ﬁFfank
storme (4 years), Egrl Zimn (1 year), Eva
Griffin {2 years}, Carson Gastom {10 years),
BEnid Zinm (37 years).

The treasurers have been: Thomas S. Gray,
Granville M. Zimpn, J.EK.Wilson, H ,C.Z2imm,
J.M. Oshorn, Okey Zinn, E.Wilson Osborn,
Judy Grimm Moran, and Barbara Ball.
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The trustees nave beens Thomas S, Gray,
G.G.Griffin, Jacsh Mason, George W. Ginn,
S.VeBrown, Richargd Hiclonen, JohoSummers, Jessee
beasgon, Samuel Godimn, M. Bruce Summersg_Leeﬁ
Campbell, William Budking, UeC.Dillie, Jacob
Spiker, Clyde Gray, E.Wilsen Osborng Lester )
Grimm, Donalid Grimue, Wallace Heught, Miles HBall,

The deacons have been: Thomas S lray,
Samuel Ggﬁog@rsgﬁmﬁfrey Carroll, GoGoGriffin,
Joseph A. Summers, Gesise M. ainn, James K,
Mimm,ﬁ&hmﬁ@mgéJ&mmmm% C.E. Wilson,

J .M. Osborn, Jaceb Pierce, Audra =, Wilson,
Clyde Kenper, Jamie 4, Williams, Eari Zinn,
Blradforg Spiker, E.Wilson Usboin, David Locke,

The Tollowing quotes from the minutes of
various dates reveal Some great changes that have
taken plsce during the 138 ¥ears since the
church wag organized:

1864 ~"Motion that we meet at the Bidge
School House at early candlelighting time",

1856 - "¢r motion we appoint G.G.Griffin
to furnish candlies and keep the meeting house
ilightea during our protracteg meeting.”

1874 —~ mon motion the church tenders
her thanks to E.W.Swmers for 1 bracket
Tight (oii),n

1902-"0n metion We adjourn till next
Sat. night at early 1amp1ightinge“

1946 - "On mo%ien the moderator appoint
2 committee to Jook after securing electricity
for the church ang the material for the wiring,»

1889 - "Whereas we are aware that the
pastor has no horse to ride to do his work,
therefore resolve that the church bledge them- .
selves to raise 525,00 to purchage g horse,
and notify the other threeo churches where the
pastor preaches gng request them 4g.dp alli

they can in'helping to purchase the horge,"

1897 ~"On motion that the churen arrvanges
to buy an organ, " :

1931 w fppe President of +the Womens
ission Circle Presents a pisng to the
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1855 ~ "MembeX agrees Lo furnish fuel
for the church house For one year for 40,00 .Y

1855 - "The treasurer reports $9.70
collected for the cipdy quarter{for church

expenses).”
1855 - "Calil an extra meeting foT the
purpose of raising money for paying the pas LT
1656 ~ Yon motlom WS pay our pastor $75.0

5 year and appoint 2 commitbee to DPTOCUTE
subseription for Same. "

g5% - “Amount collescted for migsions
44,60 (for the year).® :

1868 -~ "The church appoints three mission
ary collectors, names to wit, e eriffing
Orace SUBETS: znd Ada Rrown . {Three months
1aﬁar“tﬁﬁgaemmittee reporied that the amount’t
colliected wed ¢4,30 for home missions, $2e47
for state missios, and $2.4% for Eorelgn
migsions)e

1907~ "Hission money collected for the
year, 806,23,

1877 - "on moticom to buy 1 dozen chedD
hyan boolks 1o use in the eghurch.”

1928 - n1pudpelt systen adophed.”

4928 = "The Womens HMission Gircle was
organized”. The migsion circie still 38 active
and the church hes heen greatly hepefitted ©Y
+the interest and accamplisﬁmeﬁts of the circke
in tihe more tuan 50 yeaXs of its existénce.

After 1900, from time to time,there were
more marked increases in the church vudget
tnan had cocurred before. mafore the tTuIn of
tne century, waeh pastors S& srigp Vere menw
rioned it was always as $75.00 or #100.00
o year., Graduallys fowever, the pastor’s sal=
ary was rajsed as well &8 the wages for the
sexton and the caretaker of the cemetelrye
From the first it was customéry +o appoint &
commitiee 0T al individual to collect money

budge? syéﬁem of handling church finances
was adopted in 1928. This soon proved t0 pe
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more effectual than other methods of raidging
money for the expenses of the church. The
report sent to the Association in 1962 is
representative of the modern day budget. The
church budget has continued . %o increasye

y gradually until the present time even though
B membersnip has decreased. The 1962 report

: included The following: HMHissions and other
benevolences $393.70, Asseciational Fxpenses
$5.00, Operating Expenses $180.00, Salaries
$400,00, Total #981.70.

Another change occurred in the year 1950.
For more than a cenyury nc weddings were held
in the church sanctuary. The first wedding -
was on the afternoon of Thursday, Hovember 30,
1950 when Janice Zinn, daughter of Enid and
Farl Zinn, and David Dale Bzall, son of Syvlvia
and Toy Ball were united in marriage. The
wedding had been scheduled for the Saturday
before but on Friday there fell the deepest
snow kmown to have struck the area. It was
impossible to travel so the wedding wasg delay-
ed for several days until it was possible %o
reach the church by walking or traveling in
a8 horse drawn sled. The Rev. W. Frank Osborne
was the officiating minister. Since then many
weddings have been held at South Fork including
those of the daughter and both sons of the
ones who started the trend, Janice and Dale
Ball.

South Fork has always been a small church
with a hundred members or less. It was organ-
ized with about fifteen members and in apprrox-
imately twenty years the membership had
increased to sixty. There is no record giving
the membership year by year except for most
of the years since 1906 which seems to have
- been the peak year with 105 members reported

to the Association. Iike many rural commu-

nitiesg, the area is more sparsely populated
than it once was, the family units are
smaller, and many of the younger people
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have left to live elsewhere so the membership
has dropped, more or less gradually, for many
vears, The number of members reported to the
Association for 1978 was 52.

Phe South Fork Baptist Church
In the year 1953

The members of the church have always
taken pride in keeping the property in good
repair and in adding improvements when it
was feasible to do so. It may be of interest
to 1list some of the major repairs and additions
with the dates when those things were done:

1915 ~ A new roof was put on the church
building at a cost of ¥77.17.

1916 - The side walls of the church
were repapered. The paper cost §7.00.

1920 - A gas line was laid to the church
building and gas stoves installed.

1922 - The cement platform at the front
of the church building was constructed. This
includes a monument to "the horse and buggy
days™ in the form of a block of cement rising
above the level of the platform at one corner

for the convenienwe of horseback riders in
mounting ang dismounting.
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1946 ~ The bullding was wired for elece
tricity.

1955 =~ The papered sidewalls wers covered
with Celotex paneling.

1556 ~ Flans were made for a2 cinder block
additvion, 28 by 32 feet, Lo be added to the
back part ¢f the church building. This room
wag to serve ap Sunday School rooms, kitchen
and dining room. The sstimsted cost for mater-
lals was 24450.00. Clyde Gray was the carpen~
ter and planned the room.

196% = The ceiling of the sanctuary was
refinighed with celotex replacing the embossed

metal ceiling (which had deterisrated) used when

the chureh wes built in 1909.

1962 - The gas stoves were replaced by
floor furnaces.

1964 ~ A water system was installed and
rest rooms were finished in the cinder bhlsock
addition.

1979 - 4 gas forced air furnace was ine-
S'ﬁ&lled I

Much of the 1ife of a2 chureh is not
recorded in the minutes since they are pri-
marily a record of the formel transactions.
The spiritual life of a church is evidenced
in the zeal and devotion ¢f its members in
carrying out the purpcose of the church and
is reflected in the daily walk of those
who have pledged themselves to follow the
principles of living a Christian life as
revealed by the Holy Bible. Down through
the yearg there have been faithful and
consecrated men and women who have helped to
keep the true spirit ¢f the church alive.
Yany may not have been those whose names
appeared in the minutes,or some never may
have been known to "speak out in church®, but
by dedicated lives and according to their
talents they contributed much to the spiritual
life of the church. ‘
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The hundreds of church meetings held
through the years, the sermons preached, the
Sunday School lessons taught, the hymns sung,
the prayers offered, the revivals attended,
the baptismal services conducted, the mest-
ings of the nission circls held, the contri= _
butions of money or timé made, thé fellow- |
ship enjoyed while partaking of food spread
on improvised tables in the grove, the worlk-
ing together on & elean~up or repair projedt,
and the. friendships formed sre only sofme of
the aspects of ehurch life that heve conltrie
buted in varying degrees to furthering the
way of 1ife for which the chureh stands. The
infivence of The South Pork Baptist Church upon
the lives it has touched, in its long history,
and the exteni of that influence ig immeasyr
able.,

ER R e S o S T R T




Afterworsd

After completion of the foregoing pages

the following information nertaining to South
§ affiliation with anp Association (referreq
page 11) was obtained:

"The Broad Run dssociation was organized
16,1835 (six years before the orgapi-
&t the time

Association

ewWis, Upshar, Webster, Braxton, Gilmer,
Roane, Doddridge, Ritehi Barbour,
Tyler, ang Monongalia.

There is a
ninutes of "messengers" T.3.g G.G.Griffin,
and Allison Barnett from the Fork Church

attending the 18th Annua
Run Association in 188%,

The 43rd 4nnuaj Meeting of the Broad Fun
Association was held August 31~September 1
1881 at the South Fork church."

The above would indicate that South Fork
Church was a member of the Broad Run Assoeciation
from the time the churech wasg Organized wntil
joini i iation in 1889.




